
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rolling Hills 
Community Development District 

 
 

April 12, 2022 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



   Rolling Hills  
  Community Development District 
  475 West Town Place 
  Suite 114  
  St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
  District Website:  www.RollingHillsCDD.com 

 
April 5, 2022 
 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Rolling Hills Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Rolling Hills Community Development District Meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, 
April 12, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. at the Rolling Hills Amenity Center, 3212 Bradley Creek 
Parkway, Green Cove Springs, Florida 32092.  
Following is the advance agenda for the meeting: 

 
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Audience Comments (Regarding Agenda Items Listed Below) 
 
 III. Approval of Minutes of the February 3, 2022 Special Meeting and February 8, 

2022 Meeting 
 
 IV. Consideration of Resolution 2022-07, Instructing the Clay County Supervisor of 

Elections to Conduct the General Election  
 
 V. Consideration of Resolution 2022-08, Designating Kutak Rock LLP as Registered 

Agent and Registered Office 
 
 VI. Consideration of Proposal from Parry Pools for Pool Refurbishment 
 
 VII. Series 2020 Project: 
  A. Update Regarding Series 2020 Project 
 
  B. Ratification of Requisitions (72-78) 
 
 VIII. Series 2022 Project: 
  A. Update Regarding Series 2021 Project 
 
  B. Ratification of Requisitions (001 - 008) 
 



  C. Consideration of Work Authorization No. 1 
 
 IX. Discussion on Stop Signs 
 
 X. Ratification of Construction Contract for Shadow Crest 
 
 XI. Consideration of Renewal of Pool Use Agreement with Clay High School Swim 

Team 
 
 XII. Other Business 
 
 XIII. Staff Reports 
  A. Attorney  
  
 B.  Engineer – Draft Stormwater Needs Analysis 
  
  C. Manager – Qualifying Period for Seats 2, 4 and 5 
 
  D. Operations / Amenity Manager  
    1. Report 
 
    2. Monthly Quality Inspection Report 
 
    3. Tree Amigos Increase Letter 
 
    4. Tree Amigos Landscape Enhancement at Entrance Sign 
 
    5. Tree Amigos Landscape Enhancement at Flag Pole Island 
 
 XIV. Supervisor’s Requests 
 
 XV. Audience Comments 
 
 XVI. Financial Reports 
  A. Balance Sheet & Income Statement 
 
  B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
 
  C. Check Register 
 
XVII. Next Scheduled Meeting: June 14, 2022 @ 6:00 p.m. at the Rolling Hills Amenity 

Center 
 
XVIII. Adjournment 
 
 
Community Interest: 



 A. Amenity Center – Chairperson Jordan 
 B. Security & Technology –Supervisor Miller 
 C. Communications, Programming/Events, Finance & Accounting – Supervisor 

Riggs 
 D. Landscape & Pond Maintenance – Supervisor Church  
 

 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



ROLLING HILLS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 A special meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Rolling Hills Community 

Development District was held Thursday, February 3, 2022 at 10:00 a.m. in the Rolling Hills 

Amenity Center, 3212 Bradley Creek Parkway, Green Cove Springs, Florida. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
 Shannon Jordan Chairperson 
 Rose Bock Supervisor 
 David Church Supervisor 
 Nate Riggs Supervisor by telephone 
 
 Also present were: 
 
 Marilee Giles District Manager 
 Michelle Rigoni District Counsel by telephone 
 Freddie Oca Riverside Management 
 Cynthia Wilhelm Nabors Giblin Nickerson by telephone 
 Sete Zare MNS Capital Markets by telephone 
 
 
 
 The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the February 3, 2022 

meeting.  An audio copy of the proceedings can be obtained by contacting the District Manager. 

 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Ms. Giles called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. and called the roll.   

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments  

 There not being any, the next item followed. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2022-05 
Amending Resolution 2022-02 Delegated 
Award Resolution 

 Ms. Giles stated Resolution 2022-05 amends Resolution 2022-02, the delegated award 

resolution. 



February 3, 2022 Rolling Hills CDD 

2 

 Ms. Wilhelm stated the resolution amends Resolution 2022-02, which was adopted by the 

board in October.  We thought we were going to be issuing bonds by the end of the calendar year, 

2021.  At the time we adopted the resolution we had a not to exceed par amount of approximately 

$9.7 million, we are requesting an increase to approximately $12.5 million and we can confirm 

that we are going to be calling in the 2022 bonds if there are any issued in 2022.   

 Ms. Zare stated since we first approved the delegation resolution in October there has been 

quite a bit of cost adjustments as well as the adjustments in the market that provides for the 

flexibility to issue just a little bit more in principal.  We are asking for an increase in the not to 

exceed to give a little more flexibility on the date of pricing.   

 Ms. Jordan asked by raising the not to exceed will this increase the cost to the residents? 

 Ms. Zare stated the assessment levels are consistent with what you see, it is just that there 

may be a little more flexibility.  What this means to the end user is consistent with all the 

documents you have read at this point.   

 Ms. Jordan asked how does that not affect the end user if the bond amount is higher? 

 Ms. Zare stated that is the 2022A-2 component, the developer has responsibility of 

prepaying the 2022A-2 bonds down at the time of sale to a builder or to the end user.   

 

On MOTION by Mr. Jordan seconded by Mr. Church with all in 
favor Resolution 2022-05 was approved. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisors Requests 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Meeting Scheduled for February 8, 2022 
@ 6:00 p.m. at Rolling Hills Amenity Center 

 Ms. Giles stated the next meeting is February 8, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. at this location. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Ms. Jordan with all in favor 
the meeting adjourned at 10:08 a.m. 

 



February 3, 2022 Rolling Hills CDD 

3 

 
 
 
 
    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 
 
 
 



MINUTES OF MEETING 
ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Rolling Hills Community 

Development District was held Tuesday, February 8, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. in the Rolling Hills 

Amenity Center, 3212 Bradley Creek Parkway, Green Cove Springs, Florida. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
 Shannon Jordan Chairperson 
 John Miller Vice Chairman 
 David Church Supervisor 
 Nate Riggs Supervisor by telephone 
 
 Also present were: 
 
 Marilee Giles District Manager 
 Katie Buchanan District Counsel 
 Keith Hadden District Engineer 
 Freddie Oca Riverside Management 
 Brian Stephens Riverside Management 
 Bill Huck Waltham Development by telephone 
 Scott Blunck Garden Street Communities Southeast, LLC 
 Sete Zare MBS Capital Markets 
 Brett Sealy MBS Capital Markets 
  
 
 The following is a summary of the actions taken at the February 8, 2022 meeting.  An 

audio copy of the proceedings can be obtained by contacting the District Manager. 

 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Ms. Giles called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and called the roll.   

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments  

 Ms. Cormier asked under the twelfth order of business, what is a special call? 

 Ms. Buchanan stated that relates to the bonds, meaning it is not part of the district’s 

operating and maintenance budget, it is part of the debt service budget.   



February 8, 2022 Rolling Hills CDD 

2 

 Ms. Cormier stated the twelfth order of business under section C, they have not blacked 

out the Clay County Sheriff’s Officer’s address.  It is something I have addressed a couple times 

about not having that on public records. 

 Ms. Jordan stated it is up to the officer to black that out or request that it be blacked out. 

 Ms. Cormier asked under the sixth order of business, the requisition for the inspectors. 

 Mr. Hadden stated Clay County no longer does their own inspections.  These roads will 

eventually be turned over to Clay County and the developer is required to obtain the services of 

one of two engineering firms and that they have inspectors out here every day and that is a 

monthly expenditure paid by the developer and they report to the county. 

 Ms. Cornier stated I know it has been addressed before but when is the service road 

getting built and it was recently discovered that it has not been turned over to the county. 

 Mr. Hadden stated the county doesn’t want it right now.  There is a letter from about five 

years ago that stated that the county does not want the developer to build the road as part of the 

county’s overall road plan and there is a document that says whenever the county wants to take 

ownership of that strip the developer will give it to them.   

 Ms. Cormier stated I was at the planning and zoning meeting last week and they told me 

that they wanted that road but the developer will not turn it over.   

 Mr. Hadden stated you talked to Mike Brown who is head of the planning department his 

predecessor was the one instrumental in getting the document. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated I looked it up and the special call is part of the 2015 bond series and 

it is not related to the O&M assessments. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Minutes of the December 14, 
2021 Meeting and January 19, 2022 Special 
Meeting 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Church with all in 
favor the minutes of the December 14, 2021 and January 19, 2022 
meetings were approved as presented. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Fee Agreement with Kutak 
Rock, LLP 

 Ms. Buchanan stated as you are aware Hopping Green & Sams special district group left 

to join the law firm of Kutak Rock and you previously authorized the transfer and this agreement 



February 8, 2022 Rolling Hills CDD 

3 

formalizes the arrangement between the CDD and Kutak Rock.  The hourly rates are the same as 

what you previously paid and the agreement is terminable at will, meaning should you decide 

that you are unhappy with our service you can immediately provide notice to terminate the 

agreement.   

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Miller with all in 
favor the fee agreement with Kutak Rock LLP was approved. 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2022-06 
Supplemental Assessment Resolution  

 Ms. Buchanan stated Resolution 2022-06 is what we call the supplemental assessment 

resolution.  What you previously authorized was for the district to issue bonds in connection with 

the phase 3B 3C project.  We levied special assessments to secure those bonds and what we have 

done now is actually had MBS sell the bonds from the district to bondholders and in doing so 

locking in the specific rates the district will pay on those bonds.  The whereas clauses go through 

the details of the district’s issuance history, we had new money deals as well as a refunding deal 

and this particular bond issuance refunds the bonds that were issued in 2015 known as the 

2015A-3 Bonds.  Section 3 goes through the findings and notes we did have due notice and a 

public hearing and allowed for public comment.  It specifically incorporates the supplemental 

engineer’s report, which is attached as Exhibit A, as well as the master special assessment 

methodology that was initially prepared in June and also incorporates the supplemental 

assessment report final numbers.  It makes the finding that the project is going to provide benefit 

to the property and sets forth the terms of the 2022 bonds.  The bonds are going to be issued in 

two components, one is $6,130,000 portion for the 2022A bonds and the second is $4,740,000 

component and the reason for the difference is those are going to have different payoff schedules 

and different interest rates.   

 The exhibits will take you through the details of the bonds.  The average coupon rate we 

have locked in for the $6,130,000 is between 3.125% and 4%, the $4,740,000 has an average 

coupon rate of 3.65%.  The other difference that I noted is the distinction of the payoff, it is 

anticipated that the 2022A-2s are going to be paid off at closing in connection with the sale of 

lots.  While we have them as a ten-year bond it is possible they would be completed in advance 

of that time.   



February 8, 2022 Rolling Hills CDD 

4 

 Ms. Buchanan then reviewed in detail the sources and uses of funds. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Church with all in 
favor Resolution 2022-06 was approved. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Developer Agreement with 
Garden Street Communities Southeast 

 Ms. Buchanan stated the developer agreement is something that the CCUA requests 

everyone who is building utilities to enter into with them.  It identifies the connection fee, which 

in our case we don’t have one because we expect that has already been paid by the prior 

developer, but there is an inspection fee and recording fee and this details the transition process 

of the district building the improvements and conveying those improvements to CCUA because 

ultimately that will be the entity that controls our water and sewer, we don’t keep those 

improvements ourselves.  While the agreement in your package is addressed to Garden Street, 

since the district is doing the construction work, Garden Street has requested that we are the ones 

to sign the developer agreement in connection with that conveyance process.   

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Miller with all in 
favor the developer agreement with Garden Street Communities 
Southeast was approved. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Work Authorization for 
Stormwater Needs Analysis 

 Mr. Hadden stated we discussed in previous meetings that the state now requires every 

local government do an analysis of the stormwater system, looking 20-years down the road and it 

has to be updated every five years.  The county will put all those reports into one for the overall 

county. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Miller with all in 
favor the work authorization to prepare the stormwater needs 
analysis in an amount not to exceed $7,500 was approved. 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Series 2020 Project 

A. Update Regarding Series 2020 Project 



February 8, 2022 Rolling Hills CDD 

5 

 Mr. Hadden stated we made very good progress, all the water is in, all the reclaimed is in, 

the sewer is in except the part that crosses the bridge and when they finish that the crew will start 

putting in the force main.  They have started work on the sub-base of the roads and behind that 

will be the curbing and asphalt.   

 

B. Ratification of Requisitions 65-67 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Miller with all in 
favor requisitions 65-67 were ratified. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Miller with all in 
favor requisitions 68-71 were approved. 

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Series 2021 Project 

 Update Regarding Series 2021 Project 

 Mr. Blunck stated at the meeting before last you authorized us to negotiate with the 

pipeline construction and we are real close on the contract and I have talked to Katie on a couple 

issue and I hope that is going to be done by the end of the week then we will bring it to the board 

for signature.  We have our preconstruction meeting tomorrow with the contractor, engineer, 

ETM, myself and county staff and hope to start next week with basic surveying and once we get 

a contractor they will mobilize and start moving dirt.  All permits are in place with the Clay 

County Utility Authority.   We have a very aggressive 11-month schedule and will complete the 

project as quickly as possible.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated we do expect to take advantage of the direct purchase process and 

we will bring that back to the next meeting.   

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 

 A. Attorney 

 There being none, the next item followed. 



February 8, 2022 Rolling Hills CDD 

6 

 

 B. Engineer 

 Mr. Hadden stated Major Giles is the one who got your roads fixed. 

 Ms. Giles stated everyone had input to the letter that we directed to Commissioner Burke 

and she took care of it within 48 hours. 

 

 C. Manager 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

 D. Operations/Amenity Manger 

 1. Report 

 Mr. Stephens gave an overview of the operations report. 

 

 2. Monthly Quality Inspection Report 

 Mr. Stephens distributed a copy of the January landscape inspection report. 

 Mr. Oca reported that he needed to get the marcite on the gutters repaired prior to 

opening the pool. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Miller with all in 
favor staff was authorized to have the pool repairs done in an 
amount not to exceed $6,500. 

 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisors Requests 

 Ms. Jordan stated we had talked about possibly getting water fountains by the tennis 

courts.  I don’t know if we fixed them or if we were going to get prices. 

 Mr. Stephens stated I looked at them and they are beyond repair.   

 Mr. Oca stated we can get by with the two that are out there that are functioning this year. 

 Ms. Jordan stated it may be in our best interest to try to prolong that. 

 Mr. Miller asked how do we get Clay Electric to fix the lights that keep popping on and 

off?   

 I talked to one of the motor officers and there is a concern with speeding on Bradley 

Creek and he suggested we contact the county sheriff’s department to do a study.  I don’t know if 



February 8, 2022 Rolling Hills CDD 

7 

it is going to cost anything but he recommended establishing more stop signs on Bradley Creek 

to slow the traffic down.   

 Ms. Jordan stated we previously discussed doing a traffic study for our speed limits.   

 Mr. Hadden stated stop signs are a double edge sword.  The people who live in the back 

are going to have to stop six times.  A few years ago I was the engineer for the Town of Orange 

Park and we put up six stop signs between Wells and Kingsley and it took longer to go down 

Plainfield with the stop signs than to stay on 17.  The residents loved it.  Stop signs would slow 

people down and make them stop and the county would support that.   

 Ms. Jordan asked could that be done without a study? 

 Mr. Hadden stated if you wrote through Marilee to Commissioner Burke and requested 

them from a safety and speed standpoint and you could offer to have them put up at your expense 

so the county didn’t have to pay for them.  You could start with an officer giving out speeding 

tickets. 

 Ms. Giles stated if you can give me the intersections you want to put them at I can get the 

conversation started with public works at the county.   

 

TIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 

 Ms. Cormier stated on the personal aspect of the situation with Wayne Simpson and the 

restraining order, the judge has temporarily extended the temporary restraining order and they 

are doing an evaluation.  I have reached out to Shannon and the state’s attorneys office and if 

there is anything you can do to help remind them of the complaints that have happened in the 

neighborhood concerning him it would be greatly appreciated.  He has definitely violated the 

conditional release and they are well aware of that based on the reports that were turned in and 

they know he is a danger to the community based on the complaints and evidence and 

statements, they are just making sure everything happens properly. 

 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Financial Reports 

 A. Balance Sheet & Income Statement 

 A copy of the balance sheet and income statement were included in the agenda package. 

 

 B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 



February 8, 2022 Rolling Hills CDD 

8 

 A copy of the assessment receipt schedule was included in the agenda package. 

 

 C. Check Register 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Miller with all in 
favor the check registers were approved. 

 

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Meeting Scheduled for April 12, 2022 @ 
6:00 p.m. at Rolling Hills Amenity Center 

 Ms. Giles stated the next meeting is April 12, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. at this location. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Miller with all in 
favor the meeting adjourned at 7:01 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



RESOLUTION 2022-07 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE ROLLING 
HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT IMPLEMENTING 
SECTION 190.006(3), FLORIDA STATUTES, AND REQUESTING THAT 
THE CLAY COUNTY SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS CONDUCT THE 
DISTRICT’S GENERAL ELECTIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
COMPENSATION; SETTING FORTH THE TERMS OF OFFICE; 
AUTHORIZING NOTICE OF THE QUALIFYING PERIOD; AND 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Rolling Hills Community Development District (“District”) is a local unit of 

special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, 
being situated entirely within unincorporated Clay County, Florida; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District (“Board”) seeks to implement Section 
190.006(3), Florida Statutes, and to instruct the Clay County Supervisor of Elections 
(“Supervisor”) to conduct the District’s elections by the qualified electors of the District at the 
general election (“General Election”). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
1. GENERAL ELECTION SEATS.  Seat 2, currently held by Rose Bock, Seat 34 currently 

held by David Church and Seat 5, currently held by Nate Riggs are scheduled for the General 
Election beginning in November 2022.  The District Manager is hereby authorized to notify the 
Supervisor of Elections as to what seats are subject to General Election for the current election 
year, and for each subsequent election year. 

 
2. QUALIFICATION PROCESS.  For each General Election, all candidates shall qualify 

for individual seats in accordance with Section 99.061, Florida Statutes, and must also be a 
qualified elector of the District. A qualified elector is any person at least 18 years of age who is a 
citizen of the United States, a legal resident of the State of Florida and of the District, and who is 
registered to vote with the Clay County Supervisor of Elections.  Campaigns shall be conducted 
in accordance with Chapter 106, Florida Statutes. 

 
3. COMPENSATION. Members of the Board receive $200 per meeting for their 

attendance and no Board member shall receive more than $4,800 per year. 
 
4. TERM OF OFFICE. The term of office for the individuals to be elected to the Board 

in the General Election is four years.  The newly elected Board members shall assume office on 
the second Tuesday following the election. 

 



5. REQUEST TO SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS.  The District hereby requests the 
Supervisor to conduct the District’s General Election in November 2022, and for each subsequent 
General Election unless otherwise directed by the District’s Manager.  The District understands 
that it will be responsible to pay for its proportionate share of the General Election cost and 
agrees to pay same within a reasonable time after receipt of an invoice from the Supervisor.   

 
6. PUBLICATION.  The District Manager is directed to publish a notice of the 

qualifying period for each General Election, in a form substantially similar to Exhibit A attached 
hereto. 

 
7. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions of 

this Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this 
Resolution, or any part thereof. 

 
8. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of April, 2022. 

 
ROLLING HILLS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  
DISTRICT 

 
 

        
CHAIRPERSON/VICE CHAIRPERSON 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
            
SECRETARY/ASSISTANT SECRETARY 
 
 
  



EXHIBIT A 
 

NOTICE OF QUALIFYING PERIOD FOR CANDIDATES 
FOR THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Notice is hereby given that the qualifying period for candidates for the office of Supervisor 
of the Rolling Hills Community Development District (“District”) will commence at noon on June 
13, 2022, and close at noon on June 17, 2022.  Candidates must qualify for the office of Supervisor 
with the Clay County Supervisor of Elections located at (____________________), (_______), 
Florida ______; Ph: (____) (____).  All candidates shall qualify for individual seats in accordance 
with Section 99.061, Florida Statutes, and must also be a “qualified elector” of the District, as 
defined in Section 190.003, Florida Statutes.  A “qualified elector” is any person at least 18 years 
of age who is a citizen of the United States, a legal resident of the State of Florida and of the 
District, and who is registered to vote with the Clay County Supervisor of Elections.  Campaigns 
shall be conducted in accordance with Chapter 106, Florida Statutes. 

The Rolling Hills Community Development District has two (3) seats up for election, 
specifically seats 2, 4 and 5.  Each seat carries a four-year term of office.  Elections are nonpartisan 
and will be held at the same time as the general election on November 8, 2022, and in the manner 
prescribed by law for general elections. 

For additional information, please contact the Clay County Supervisor of Elections. 

 

Publish on or before May 30, 2022.  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 

 

RESOLUTION 2022-08 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE ROLLING HILLS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT DESIGNATING A REGISTERED 
AGENT AND REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT. 

 
WHEREAS, Rolling Hills Community Development District (the “District”) is a local unit of 

special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, 
being situated entirely within Clay County, Florida; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District is statutorily required to designate a registered agent and a 

registered office location for the purposes of accepting any process, notice, or demand required 
or permitted by law to be served upon the District in accordance with Section 189.014(1), Florida 
Statutes. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
SECTION 1.  Katie Buchanan of Kutak Rock LLP is hereby designated as the Registered 

Agent for the Rolling Hills Community Development District. 
 

SECTION 2.  The District’s Registered Office shall be located at the office of Kutak Rock 
LLP, 107 West College Avenue, Tallahassee, Florida 32301. 

 
SECTION 3.  In accordance with Section 189.014, Florida Statutes, the District’s Secretary 

is hereby directed to file certified copies of this Resolution with Clay County and the Florida 
Department of Economic Opportunity. 
 

SECTION 4.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption and any 
provisions of any previous resolutions in conflict with the provisions hereof are hereby 
superseded. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of April 2022. 

 
ATTEST:  ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
__________________________    ________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 

4571 St. Augustine Road 
Jacksonville, FL 32207 

Phone: 904.733.7665 
Fax: 904.733.7946 

CPC 056638 
CPC 044955 

 
 
 
 

  
 

 
 
April 1, 2022 
 
Rolling Hills amenity Pool 
Lake Asbury Fl. 32043 
 
 
Re: Rolling Hills 

  
Parry Pools, Inc.  is pleased to provide you with our budget number for the above-
mentioned project.  We propose to furnish all labor and materials necessary to complete 
the referenced project. Our budget number includes: Plaster and Tile to code (all step 
and waterline tile to be brought to code) 
 
 
Rolling Hills Pool Plaster                                                                   $260,000.00        
                     
 

• Plaster with Quartz Commercial finish  
• Drain and secure pool from ground water 
• Hydro blast existing surface to a solid sub-straight  
• Coat pool with perma-coat bond coat 
• Install new gutter grates 
• New floor returns  
• Remove and install 6 new racing lanes and 12 new targets 
• Replace 2-18”x18” VGB main drain grates 
• Replace 2-12”x12” VGB Main Drain grates  
• Replace step cap tile and bench edge tile 
• Replace waterline tile, non-skid per DOH 
• Fill and balance (water supplied by owner) 
• 2 week start up period per manufacturer (water balance only) 

 
 
Rolling Hills Splash Pad Plaster                                                           TOTAL: 
$18,000.00 
 

• Plaster with quartz Commercial finish 
• Drain and secure 
• Hydro blast existing surface to a solid sub-straight 
• Coat with perma-coat 
• Replace 1-18”x18” VGB frame and grate 



 

• Fill and balance water 
 
 
                                                                                                                 TOTAL: 
$278,000.00   
 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide you with a proposal.  Please call me if you 
have any additional questions or issues. This bid is valid for 60 days 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Billy 
 
William E Parry, III 
President 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 





































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



































Project Contact Johnson, Stacey

Rolling Hills Community Development District

Attn: Accounts Payable

475 West Town Place, Suite 114, World Golf Village

St. Augustine, FL  32092

March 10, 2022

Invoice No: 69804

Due Date: April 9, 2022

Project 221‐0076.1 Rolling Hills CDD

Professional Services from February 1, 2022 to February 28, 2022

Task 001 CDD

Fee

Total Fee 12,500.00

Percent Complete 100.00 Total Earned 12,500.00

Previous Fee Billing 12,500.00

Current Fee Billing 0.00

Total Fee 0.00

0.00Total this Task

Task 002 CDD Engineering

Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount

Employee

Oestman, Adam     1.50 95.00   142.50

Pre‐con Meeting

Schofield, Joseph     1.00 185.00   185.00

plan change and submittal prep. per pre‐construction mtg. w/ county and 
contractor requests.

Schofield, Joseph     1.00 185.00   185.00

plan revisions and corres. per contractor and count pre‐con. mtg. action items.

Schofield, Joseph     3.00 185.00   555.00

pre‐construction mtg. at County, travel, and support to contractor.

Totals 6.50 1,067.50

Total Labor 1,067.50

$1,067.50Total this Task

$1,067.50Total this Invoice

email:  accounting@alliant‐inc.com









3/30/2022

Rolling Hills Community Development District
Scott Blunck

Description:

Current Gross Monthly Billing 428,507.38$       
Less 5% Retainage 21,425.37$         
Current Net Monthly Billing 407,082.01$       

Payment Due Net Thirty

Date:Engineer Certification 

Invoice

Invoice No. 257-2

Project:
Shadow Crest at Rolling Hills
Green Cove Springs, FL



REQUEST FOR PAYMENT

DRAW (INVOICE) #:

DRAW DATE:

PERIOD END DATE:

PROJECT # :

PROJECT:

LOCATION:

OFFICE USE ONLY

a) Amount of original agreement …………………………………….$__________________

b) Net Change Orders #1 thru #_______ ……………………………………..$__________________

c) Revised agreement amount (a+b) ……………………………………..$__________________

d) Work completed to date ………………………………………………$__________________

e) Value of stored materials (itemized inventory attached) ………………………….$__________________

f) Total completed & stored to date (d+e) ………………………………….………………………… $__________________

g) Less previous applications (line f from previous draw) ……..………. $__________________

h) Current application (f-g) …………………………………. $__________________

i) Less ________ % retainage (h*%) …………………………………. $__________________

j) Less other deductions (State if applicable) ………………………….$__________________

k) Net amount this request (h-i-j) ………………………………….. $__________________

l) Balance to complete agreement (c-f) ………………………………….. $__________________

m) Job-To-Date Retainage Held ………………………………………………$__________________

  CONDITIONAL PARTIAL WAIVER AND RELEASE OF LIEN
This agreement constitutes a partial release of lien to the extent of all monies 
due and owing, including the cost of additional labor and material for work 
being performed without a signed Change Order up to date hereof, and further 
is given in accordance with Governing Mechanics Lien Law and the undersigned 
subcontractor certifies that he has paid all laborers and materialmen to the date 
hereof and this agreement constitutes a sworn affidavit inducing 

________________________________ to make the payment requested.

The undersigned subcontractor acknowledges that there are no additional costs or claims for any extras

or additions for labor or material on the described real estate performed to date, except as authorized by 
signed Change Orders which are included on line "b" below and further certifies that all work performed or 
materials installed are in accordance with the approved plans and specifications on the agreement.

The undersigned certifies that all laborers and materialmen with regard to the job have been fully paid

and that none of such laborers and materialmen have any claims, demands or claims of lien against said 
premises, and the undersigned subcontractor does hereby agree to indemnify and hold harmless 

___________________________against any loss or damage, including a reasonable attorney's fee, which it 

may sustain by reason of placing or filing of liens against said real estate by subcontractor's laborers or 
materialmen for amounts due them for services performed to date. SIGNATURE MUST BE NOTARIZED OR WITNESSED BY TWO PERSONS.

Witness the hand and seal of the undersigned this _________ day of _____________________________,20_______

By:
Name of Company Signature    Title

Address Phone

Before me, the undersigned authority, personally appeared __________________________ who, by me being first duly sworn, did acknowledge that

he or she is the ____________________ of _________________________ and as such has the authority to execute this document and that the facts

stated therein are true.

Dated this _________ date of _______________________, 20________.  My Commission Expires: ______________________________________

STATE OF __________________ COUNTY OF __________________ Witness: ___________________________________

  ________________________________________ ___________________________________
Notary Public

CHECK DELIVERY (CIRCLE ONE) * DELIVER TO JOB SITE * REGULAR MAIL * OVERNIGHT-FEDEX/UPS #____________________________



CONDITIONAL  
WAIVER AND RELEASE OF LIEN 

UPON PROGRESS PAYMENT 

The undersigned lienor, in consideration of the sum of $_________________________, 
hereby waives and releases its lien and right to claim a lien for labor, services or materials 

furnished through _____________________ to ____________________ on the job of 
_____________________,  to the following described property: 

Job Name: _____________________________
Job Address: ______________________
City, State, Zip: ________________________

This release is contingent upon receipt by the undersigned of the consideration specified above 
and upon full collection by the undersigned of any and all checks, drafts and instruments given 
in payment for labor, services or materials on the job. 

This waiver and release does not cover any retention or labor, services, or materials 
furnished after the date specified. 

DATED on ____________________, 20_____. 

___________________________________ 
(Subcontractor’s Name) 

By:  _______________________________ 

Printed Name________________________ 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ___________________ 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___________ day 
of ____________, 20__, by________________ _____________, as _________________________ 

of  ______________________________, who is: 
  (Subcontractor’s Name) 

 _________Personally known 
 _________Produced Identification 

Type of Identification Produced____________________ 

___________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission Expires_______________ 

This is a statutory form prescribed by Section 713.20, Florida Statutes         (2001).   

3/26/25

Pipeline Constructors, Inc.

Marney Best, PM

Bradford

Marney Best Project Manager

Pipeline Constructors, Inc.



Pipeline Constructors, Inc.                                                                                                 Billing No.      2
Shadow Crest at Rolling Hills Date: 3/30/2022
Schedule of Values                                                                                                             Thru Date: 3/30/2022

Description of Work  Scheduled Value 
From Previous 

Application
 This Period 
Complete 

Material  
Stored

Total Completed 
to Date

% Balance to Finish Retainage

Mobilization 45,000.00$                        11,250.00$            -$                              11,250.00$               25% 33,750.00$                       562.50$                    
Construction Entrance 10,500.00$                        -$                        2,625.00$                    2,625.00$                  25% 7,875.00$                         131.25$                    
Construction Stake Out 25,000.00$                        6,250.00$              -$                              6,250.00$                  25% 18,750.00$                       312.50$                    
Umbrella 100,000.00$                      100,000.00$         -$                              100,000.00$             100% -$                                   5,000.00$                
Total Mobilization 180,500.00                117,500.00      2,625.00               -                   120,125.00         60,375.00                  6,006.25            

Clearing 135,120.00$                      -$                        135,120.00$                135,120.00$             100% -$                                   6,756.00$                
Stripping 300,304.00$                      45,045.60$            180,182.40$                225,228.00$             75% 75,076.00$                       11,261.40$              
Respread 205,000.00$                      -$                        -$                              -$                           0% 205,000.00$                     -$                          
Cut 147,250.00$                      -$                        -$                              -$                           0% 147,250.00$                     -$                          
Fill 340,270.00$                      -$                        34,027.00$                  34,027.00$               10% 306,243.00$                     1,701.35$                
Export Strippings 210,300.00$                      -$                        -$                              -$                           0% 210,300.00$                     -$                          
Finish Grade 58,625.00$                        -$                        -$                              -$                           0% 58,625.00$                       -$                          
Export Good 244,375.00$                      -$                        -$                              -$                           0% 244,375.00$                     -$                          
Haul Road 53,183.00$                        -$                        7,977.45$                    7,977.45$                  15% 45,205.55$                       398.87$                    
Tree Protection 6,992.00$                          5,244.00$              1,748.00$                    6,992.00$                  100% -$                                   349.60$                    

Total Earthwork 1,701,419.00             50,289.60        359,054.85           -                   409,344.45         1,292,074.55            20,467.22          

Cut 568,800.00                        56,880.00$                  56,880.00$               10% 511,920.00$                     2,844.00$                
Total Pond Excavation 568,800.00                -                    56,880.00             -                   56,880.00           511,920.00               2,844.00            

Silt Fence 24,420.00                          12,210.00$            12,210.00$                  24,420.00$               100% -$                                   1,221.00$                
Erosion Control 24,000.00                          1,200.00$              1,200.00$                    2,400.00$                  10% 21,600.00$                       120.00$                    

Total Erosion Control 48,420.00                  13,410.00        13,410.00             -                   26,820.00           21,600.00                  1,341.00            

N.O.I. 2,200.00                            2,200.00$              -$                              2,200.00$                  100% -$                                   110.00$                    
N.P.D.E.S. 18,000.00                          900.00$                 900.00$                       1,800.00$                  10% 16,200.00$                       90.00$                      
Total SWPPP 20,200.00                  3,100.00          900.00$                 4,000.00$           16,200.00$               200.00$              

C Inlet 3,489.35                            -$                              -$                           0% 3,489.35$                         -$                          
Curb Inlet 76,427.50                          -$                              -$                           0% 76,427.50$                       -$                          
Double Curb Inlet 163,039.10                        -$                              -$                           0% 163,039.10$                     -$                          
Manhole 21,879.30                          -$                              -$                           0% 21,879.30$                       -$                          
Junction Box 6,959.00                            -$                              -$                           0% 6,959.00$                         -$                          

Clearing & Earthwork

Mobilization/Construction Stake Out

Pond Excavation

Erosion Control

SWPPP

Storm Drain System 



Pipeline Constructors, Inc.                                                                                                 Billing No.      2
Shadow Crest at Rolling Hills Date: 3/30/2022
Schedule of Values                                                                                                             Thru Date: 3/30/2022
Control Structure 14,534.00                     -$                              -$                           0% 14,534.00$                       -$                          
Skimmer 11,616.00                          -$                              -$                           0% 11,616.00$                       -$                          
Yard Drain 4,230.00                            -$                              -$                           0% 4,230.00$                         -$                          
15" MES 1,563.00                            -$                              -$                           0% 1,563.00$                         -$                          
18" MES 3,326.00                            -$                              -$                           0% 3,326.00$                         -$                          
24" MES 2,260.00                            -$                              -$                           0% 2,260.00$                         -$                          
36" MES 12,120.00                          -$                              -$                           0% 12,120.00$                       -$                          
42" MES 10,200.00                          -$                              -$                           0% 10,200.00$                       -$                          
15" HP 23,565.20                          -$                              7,165.20$             7,165.20$                  0% 16,400.00$                       358.26$                    
18" HP 106,705.36                        -$                              -$                           0% 106,705.36$                     -$                          
24" HP 94,425.52                          -$                              17,467.20$          17,467.20$               0% 76,958.32$                       873.36$                    
30" HP 28,722.80                          -$                              -$                           0% 28,722.80$                       -$                          
36" HP 115,891.21                        -$                              31,022.40$          31,022.40$               0% 84,868.81$                       1,551.12$                
42" HP 57,666.56                          -$                              -$                           0% 57,666.56$                       -$                          
Orifice Materials 717.00                                -$                              -$                           0% 717.00$                             -$                          
Rip Rap 14,880.00                          -$                              -$                           0% 14,880.00$                       -$                          
Laser Profile 50,750.10                          -$                              -$                           0% 50,750.10$                       -$                          
Layout 9,100.00                            -$                              -$                           0% 9,100.00$                         -$                          
As-builts 14,300.00                          -$                              -$                           0% 14,300.00$                       -$                          
Total Storm Drain System 848,367.00                -                    -                          55,654.80       55,654.80           792,712.20               2,782.74            

Remove Plug & Connect 7,450.00                            -$                              -$                           0% 7,450.00$                         -$                          
12" DR 18 383,748.78                        -$                              -$                           0% 383,748.78$                     -$                          
8" DR 18 127,890.36                        -$                              -$                           0% 127,890.36$                     -$                          

6" DIP 7,090.56                            -$                              -$                           0% 7,090.56$                         -$                          

4" DR 18 10,558.80                          -$                              -$                           0% 10,558.80$                       -$                          

Short Service 23,901.00                          -$                              -$                           0% 23,901.00$                       -$                          

Short Double Service 65,007.00                          -$                              -$                           0% 65,007.00$                       -$                          

Long Single Service 9,580.95                            -$                              -$                           0% 9,580.95$                         -$                          

Long Double Service 120,333.00                        -$                              -$                           0% 120,333.00$                     -$                          

12" Gate Valve 46,444.20                          -$                              -$                           0% 46,444.20$                       -$                          

8" Gate Valve 14,542.80                          -$                              -$                           0% 14,542.80$                       -$                          

6" Gate Valve 28,850.70                          -$                              -$                           0% 28,850.70$                       -$                          

Fire Hydrant 49,144.45                          -$                              -$                           0% 49,144.45$                       -$                          

Flushing Hydrant 1,655.25                            -$                              -$                           0% 1,655.25$                         -$                          

Blow Off 4,965.75                            -$                              -$                           0% 4,965.75$                         -$                          

12" Misc Fittings 32,777.10                          -$                              -$                           0% 32,777.10$                       -$                          

8" Misc Fittings 13,946.80                          -$                              -$                           0% 13,946.80$                       -$                          

4" Misc Fittings 2,214.00                            -$                              -$                           0% 2,214.00$                         -$                          

Water Main 



Pipeline Constructors, Inc.                                                                                                 Billing No.      2
Shadow Crest at Rolling Hills Date: 3/30/2022
Schedule of Values                                                                                                             Thru Date: 3/30/2022
Restraints/Wire 41,222.60                          -$                              -$                           0% 41,222.60$                       -$                          

PT/BT 17,000.00                          -$                              -$                           0% 17,000.00$                       -$                          

Layout 18,000.00                          -$                              -$                           0% 18,000.00$                       -$                          

Wire Testing 23,121.90                          -$                              -$                           0% 23,121.90$                       -$                          

Asbuilts 24,000.00                          -$                              -$                           0% 24,000.00$                       -$                          

Total Water Main 1,073,446.00             -                    -                          -                   -                       1,073,446.00            -                       

Remove Plug & Connect 3,725.00                            -$                              -$                           0% 3,725.00$                         -$                          

12" DR 18 386,678.16                        -$                              -$                           0% 386,678.16$                     -$                          

6" DR 18 45,007.54                          -$                              -$                           0% 45,007.54$                       -$                          

4" DR 18 50,469.10                          -$                              -$                           0% 50,469.10$                       -$                          

Short Service 13,926.60                          -$                              -$                           0% 13,926.60$                       -$                          

Short Double Service 89,234.55                          -$                              -$                           0% 89,234.55$                       -$                          

Long Single Service 7,395.50                            -$                              -$                           0% 7,395.50$                         -$                          

Long Double Service 107,696.00                        -$                              -$                           0% 107,696.00$                     -$                          

12" Gate Valve 42,222.00                          -$                              -$                           0% 42,222.00$                       -$                          

6" Gate Valve 5,091.30                            -$                              -$                           0% 5,091.30$                         -$                          

4" Gate Valve 5,206.40                            -$                              -$                           0% 5,206.40$                         -$                          

Flushing Hydrant 3,400.20                            -$                              -$                           0% 3,400.20$                         -$                          

Blow Off 5,100.65                            -$                              -$                           0% 5,100.65$                         -$                          

12" Misc Fittings 23,110.35                          -$                              -$                           0% 23,110.35$                       -$                          

6" Misc Fittings 2,580.65                            -$                              -$                           0% 2,580.65$                         -$                          

4" Misc Fittings 3,539.00                            -$                              -$                           0% 3,539.00$                         -$                          

Restraints/Wire 39,248.40                          -$                              -$                           0% 39,248.40$                       -$                          

PT/BT 12,500.00                          -$                              -$                           0% 12,500.00$                       -$                          

Layout 8,800.00                            -$                              -$                           0% 8,800.00$                         -$                          

Wire Testing 22,728.60                          -$                              -$                           0% 22,728.60$                       -$                          

Asbuilts 12,400.00                          -$                              -$                           0% 12,400.00$                       -$                          

Total Re-Use  Main 890,060.00                -                    -                          -                   -                       890,060.00               -                       

Manhole "A" (4-6) 143,264.35                        -$                              -$                           0% 143,264.35$                     -$                          

Manhole "B" (10-12) 27,229.55                          -$                              -$                           0% 27,229.55$                       -$                          

Drop Bowls 2,925.22                            -$                              -$                           0% 2,925.22$                         -$                          

10" PVC 10,769.47                          -$                              -$                           0% 10,769.47$                       -$                          

8" PVC (4-6) 384,542.76                        -$                              -$                           0% 384,542.76$                     -$                          
Services 289,199.95                        -$                              -$                           0% 289,199.95$                     -$                          

Re-Use Main 

Sewer System



Pipeline Constructors, Inc.                                                                                                 Billing No.      2
Shadow Crest at Rolling Hills Date: 3/30/2022
Schedule of Values                                                                                                             Thru Date: 3/30/2022
Dewater 134,848.00                        -$                              -$                           0% 134,848.00$                     -$                          

Layout 4,900.00                            -$                              -$                           0% 4,900.00$                         -$                          

T.V. 67,634.70                          -$                              -$                           0% 67,634.70$                       -$                          

Asbuilts 7,700.00                            -$                              -$                           0% 7,700.00$                         -$                          

Total Sewer System 1,073,014.00             -                    -                          -                   -                       1,073,014.00            -                       

Gray Conduit (1260') 24,926.00                          -$                              14,553.00$          14,553.00$               0% 10,373.00$                       727.65$                    

Total Conduit 24,926.00                  -                    -                          14,553.00       14,553.00           10,373.00                  727.65                

Mixing 176,400.00                        -$                              -$                           0% 176,400.00$                     -$                          
Asphat Base - 6" 238,317.00                        -$                              -$                           0% 238,317.00$                     -$                          
Base Finishing 152,994.47                        -$                              -$                           0% 152,994.47$                     -$                          
Asphalt Paving - 2 ea 1" Lifts 362,111.30                        -$                              -$                           0% 362,111.30$                     -$                          
Prime 19,634.23                          -$                              -$                           0% 19,634.23$                       -$                          
Pavement Marking/Signage 9,295.00                            -$                              -$                           0% 9,295.00$                         -$                          
Pavement Marking Final 1,595.00                            -$                              -$                           0% 1,595.00$                         -$                          
Total Roadway 960,347.00                -                    -                          -                   -                       960,347.00               -                       

Curbs Miami 268,094.00                        -$                              -$                           0% 268,094.00$                     -$                          
Total Curb & Gutter 268,094.00                -                    -                          -                   -                       268,094.00               -                       

Sidewalk 77,620.00                          -$                              -$                           0% 77,620.00$                       -$                          
ADA Mats 28,380.00                          -$                              -$                           0% 28,380.00$                       -$                          
Total Sidewalks 106,000.00                -                    -                          -                   -                       106,000.00               -                       

Sodded Path Sand 356.40                                -$                              -$                           0% 356.40$                             -$                          
Sodded Path 96.25                                  -$                              -$                           0% 96.25$                               -$                          
Sod Pond #1 21,602.35                          -$                              -$                           0% 21,602.35$                       -$                          
Sod Pond #2 19,658.10                          -$                              -$                           0% 19,658.10$                       -$                          
Sod Pond #3 14,029.40                          -$                              -$                           0% 14,029.40$                       -$                          
Sod Pond Backs 19,681.50                          -$                              -$                           0% 19,681.50$                       -$                          
Sod Lot Slopes 24,547.60                          -$                              -$                           0% 24,547.60$                       -$                          
Sod Swales 18,283.65                          -$                              -$                           0% 18,283.65$                       -$                          
Sod Spreader Swales 88.55                                  -$                              -$                           0% 88.55$                               -$                          
Sod B.O.C. 13,576.20                          -$                              -$                           0% 13,576.20$                       -$                          
Total Sod 131,920.00                -                    -                          -                   -                       131,920.00               -                       

Seeding ROW & Lots 180,125.00                        -$                              -$                           0% 180,125.00$                     -$                          

Sodding 

Seeding/Mulching

Conduit

Roadway 

Curb & Gutter

Concrete Sidealks



Pipeline Constructors, Inc.                                                                                                 Billing No.      2
Shadow Crest at Rolling Hills Date: 3/30/2022
Schedule of Values                                                                                                             Thru Date: 3/30/2022
Total Seeding/Mulching 180,125.00                -                    -                          -                   -                       180,125.00               -                       

Bond 124,000.00                        124,000.00$         -$                              124,000.00$             100% -$                                   6,200.00$                

Total Bond 124,000.00                124,000.00      -                          -                   124,000.00         -                              6,200.00            

Sales Tax Credit (142,185.00)                      (4,362.47)$                   (4,362.47)$                3% (137,822.53)$                   (218.12)$                  
March 2022 - ODP Payments (70,207.80)                         (70,207.80)$                (70,207.80)$              100% -$                                   (3,510.39)$               

Total Bond (212,392.80)               -                    (74,570.27)            (74,570.27)          (137,822.53)              (3,728.51)           
TOTAL 7,987,245.20$          308,299.60$   358,299.58$         70,207.80$     736,806.98$      7,250,438.22$          36,840.35$        

Bond

ODP and Sales Tax Credit









































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



4883-5741-4171.1  

Work Authorization 
 

April 12, 2022 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Rolling Hills Community Development District 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
 

Subject: Work Authorization Number 1 

   Rolling Hills Community Development District 
 
Dear Chairperson, Board of Supervisors: 
 
Alliant Engineering, Inc. (the “Engineer”) is pleased to submit this work authorization to provide 
engineering services for the Rolling Hills Community Development District (the “District”).  We 
will provide these services pursuant to our current agreement dated June 8, 2021 (the “Engineering 
Agreement”) as follows:   
 
I. Scope of Work 
The Engineer will act as Purchasing Agent for the District with respect to the direct purchase of 
construction materials for the District’s Improvements located in District projects known as Phases 
3B and 3C, in accordance with the procurement procedures adopted by the Board of Supervisors. 
 
II. Compensation 
The Engineer will be compensated for this work at the hourly rates established pursuant to the 
Engineering Agreement. 
 
III. Other Direct Costs 
Other direct costs include items such as printing, drawings, travel, deliveries, et cetera, pursuant 
to the Engineering Agreement.   
 
Engineer hereby represents it understands and will abide by all terms of the District’s Procurement 
Procedures for Direct Purchase Materials.  In preparing and executing any documentation for 
purposes of ordering or purchasing materials in the name of and on behalf of the District, the 
Engineer will affirm that the vendor supplying the Direct Purchase Materials is not also the 
installer of the Direct Purchase Materials, and further will affirm that the installer of the Direct 
Purchase Materials did not manufacture, fabricate or furnish the Direct Purchase Materials. 
 
This work authorization, together with the Engineering Agreement, represents the entire 
understanding between the District and the Engineer with regard to the referenced services and 
supersedes any previously executed proposal or agreement related to the provision of such 
services.  If you wish to accept this work authorization, please sign where indicated and return to 
our office.  Upon receipt, we will promptly schedule our service. 
 
 



4883-5741-4171.1  

Sincerely, 
 
_______________________ 
By: ____________________ 
Its:_____________________ 
 
 
APPROVED AND ACCEPTED 
 
 
_______________________ 
 
Authorized Representative of  
Rolling Hills Community Development District 
Date: ________________________ 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  













































































































































































































































ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N
N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

2/21/2022

(904) 353-3181 (904) 353-5722

25615

Pipeline Constructors Inc.
2117 N. Temple Ave
Starke, FL 32091

25658
35289
11697

A 1,000,000

X X DCO0R802131COF21 7/1/2021 7/1/2022 300,000
XCU 10,000

1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

EBL AGGREGATE 1,000,000
1,000,000B

X X 8100R8031882126G 7/1/2021 7/1/2022

5,000,000C
CUE7018379125 2/3/2022 7/1/2022 5,000,000

10,000
D

X 52120579 4/17/2021 4/17/2022 1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

Project: Shadow Crest at Rolling Hills

Rolling Hills Community Development District is added as Additional Insured with respects to General Liability incuding ongoing and completed operations
and Automobile Liability on a primary and noncontributory basis when required by written contract or agreement per the attached endorsements.

A Waiver of Subrogation applies in favor of Rolling Hills Community Development District with respects to General Liability, Automobile Liability and Workers
Compensation when required by written contract or agreement per the attached endorsements.
SEE ATTACHED ACORD 101

Rolling Hills Community Development District
475 West Town Place Suite 114
Saint Augustine, FL 32092

PIPECON-02 DHIGHTOWER

Cecil W. Powell & Company
219 N. Newnan Street
Jacksonville, FL 32202

Vincent B. Ellinor, CRIS, TRIP

VEllinor@cwpowellins.com

Charter Oak Fire Insurance Co
The Travelers Indemnity Co
Continental Insurance Company
BusinessFirst Insurance Co

X

X
X

X

X

X

X
X

X



FORM NUMBER:

EFFECTIVE DATE:

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE

FORM TITLE:

Page           of

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

ACORD 101 (2008/01)

AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:
LOC #:

AGENCY NAMED INSURED

POLICY NUMBER

CARRIER NAIC CODE

© 2008 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

Cecil W. Powell & Company

PIPECON-02

SEE PAGE 1

1

SEE PAGE 1

ACORD 25 Certificate of Liability Insurance

1

SEE P 1

Pipeline Constructors Inc.
2117 N. Temple Ave
Starke, FL 32091
Duval

SEE PAGE 1

DHIGHTOWER

1

Description of Operations/Locations/Vehicles:
A 30 day notice of cancellation applies except 10 days for nonpayment of premium.




































































	Agenda
	III. Approval of Minutes of the February 3, 2022 Special Meeting and February 8, 2022 Meeting
	IV.       Consideration of Resolution 2022-07, Instructing the Clay County Supervisor of Elections to Conduct the General Election 
	V. Consideration of Resolution 2022-08, Designating Kutak Rock LLP as Registered Agent and Registered Office
	VI.       Consideration of Proposal from Parry Pools for Pool Refurbishment 
	VII. B. Ratification of Requisitions (72-78)
	VIII. B.        Ratification of Requisitions (001 - 008) 
	     C.   Consideration of Work Authorization No. 1
	     X.   Ratification of Construction Contract for Shadow Crest
	XI. Consideration of Renewal of Pool Use Agreement with Clay High School Swim Team
	XIII. D. 1.Operations / Amenity Manager Report 
	3.         Tree Amigos Increase Letter 
	4.         Tree Amigos Landscape Enhancement at Entrance Sign 
	5.         Tree Amigos Landscape Enhancement at Flag Pole Island 
	XVI. A.        Balance Sheet & Income Statement 
	B.        Assessment Receipt Schedule 
	C.        Check Register 

	DRAW INVOICE: 2
	bbb: 3/30/22
	PROJECT: 257
	PROJECT_2: Shadow Crest at Rolling Hills
	LOCATION: Clay County Florida
	Net Change Orders 1 thru: 
	a: 8057453.00
	b: -70207.80
	c: 7987245.2
	d: 666599.18
	e: 70207.80
	f: 736806.98
	g: 308299.60
	h: 428507.38
	5: 5
	i: 21425.37
	j: 0.00
	l: 7250438.220000001
	m: 36840.35
	Witness the hand and seal of the undersigned this 2: Pipeline Constructors, Inc.
	By:                                                                Project Manager
	Address: 2117 N. Temple Ave Starke, FL 32091
	Phone: 904-964-2019
	Before me the undersigned authority personally appeared: Marney Best
	he or she is the: Project Manager 
	of: Pipeline Constructors, Inc.
	ccc: 30th
	ddd: March
	eee: 22
	My Commission Expires: 3/26/25
	STATE OF: Florida
	COUNTY OF: Bradford
	Text1: Rolling Hills Comm Dev District
	k: 407082.01
	aaa: 3/30/22
	Text2: Rolling Hills Comm Dev District
	Text3: Shadow Crest
	Text4: Shadow Crest at Rolling Hills
	Text5: Garden Moss Drive
	Text6: Green Cove Springs, FL
	20: March 30th


